
 
 

 

Memo 
To: Manchester by the Sea Zoning Board of Appeals 

From: David Formato, P.E. 

CC: Carlton Quinn, P.E., Allen&Major Associates, Inc., SLV School Street, LLC 

Date: April 27, 2022 

Re: SLV School Street – Manchester by the Sea Sewer System Capacity   

Dear Madam Chairman; 

We have reviewed the Town of Manchester-by-the-Sea’s Comprehensive Wastewater Management Plan 
(CWMP) filed with MassDEP for approval in August of 2016, prepared by CDR Maguire Inc.  The CWMP 
process involves a detailed assessment of both the Town’s sewer system and wastewater treatment facility 
(WWTF) relative to current flows, loads and potential future flows, as well as loads to assess both areas of 
need that should be targeted for expansion of the system in addition to identifying if the system has capacity 
available to accommodate such expansion and additional flows.  This assessment is relative to both system 
capacity and the ability to receive, process and treat existing and additional sewage flows while remaining 
within the current Discharge Permit requirements for the Town system issued jointly by the EPA and 
MassDEP.   
 
As noted, the CWMP presents an in-depth analysis of the current condition of the sewers and treatment 
system relative to the flows, loadings and treatment system performance.   While the sewer system has had 
historic issues with non-sanitary flows from rain and/or groundwater infiltration (infiltration and inflow (I/I)), 
the CWMP did note that mitigation efforts to reduce these loadings, when undertaken as they have since 
been, would restore capacity in the system and WWTF such that additional connections, within the 
framework of the CWMP, could be permitted.   
 
Based upon the identified issues, MassDEP issued a sewer moratorium that prevented the Town from 
approving and allowing any new sewer connections until such time that results for I/I removal were obtained 
and documented to the satisfaction of MassDEP personnel.  It is our understanding based on discussions 
with the Town that the I/I removal program has been underway for several years now and that MassDEP 
has, or will be, lifting their imposed connection moratorium as a result of the progress made.  At that point, 
the remaining issue related to if the proposed SLV School Street project would be able to connect into the 
system would be relative to the configuration of the proposed connection and if the existing sewer and 
WWTF system has capacity to convey and treat the additional flow.  
 
It is on this front that we have focused our efforts relative to the information contained in the CWMP.  To 
assist with the presentation of our review and analysis, we have included several pages and text sections 
with tables from the CWMP report that provides specific information relative to the ability of the Town to 
accept a connection from this project and provide sewer service.     



 
 

 

 
As part of their analysis, CDR Maguire divided the Town into sewer service areas and assigned them each 
a designation.  Each area was then evaluated from not only an existing sewer system configuration and 
flow perspective, but also in order to assess if the service area should be considered for expansion of the 
system (if there was already sewer) or if it would be both feasible and advantageous to extend/expand the 
current sewer system to serve these un-sewered areas.  Specific to School Street north of Route 128, this 
part of Manchester by the Sea was designated as “Study Area 6 LCD Area”.  Based on information 
presented, back in 2016 it was envisioned that this area might be suitable for development as an industrial 
or commercial section of Town and that either providing for a small area specific sewer system and individual 
treatment facility or expansion of the sewer to connect these parcels to the existing system would be 
potential options for wastewater disposal.  Further, it was estimated that the anticipated flow from any 
development of the parcels in this area of Town would most likely result in approximately 60,000 gallons 
per day of sewage flow.  Ultimately, the CDR Maguire analysis, as shown in Table VIII-1 Recommended 
Plan from the report (below), indicated that Study Area 6 was targeted for having the sewer system 
expanded and connected into the existing WWTF as the preferred/primary option for wastewater disposal.   
 

 
 

Furthermore, as shown in Table VIII-2 Wastewater Flow Projections for the Recommended Plan below, 
Study Area 6 was specifically assigned a sewage flow in the CWMP recommended plan of 62,000 gallons 
per day with a further recommendation that 31,000 gallons per day of capacity at the WWTP be specifically 
set-aside for projected sewage flow when this area is developed.  
 



 
 

 

 
  

 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
Given this information, it appears that the Town, via the CWMP planning process, specifically identified this 
area as a section of Town that should be provided with a connection to the existing municipal sewer system 
as well as having a portion of the existing excess flow capacity at the WWTP reserved for flow from this 
area.  As noted, this reserved WWTF capacity is above the currently proposed Title 5 sewage flow 
(maximum day flow) from the proposed SLV School Street Development. 
 
Lastly, while that section of the CWMP addressed planned sewer system expansions and the ability to make 
new sewer connections once the MassDEP lifted the Moratorium on new connections (after I/I removal 
efforts and the CWMP approval process was complete), CDR Maguire was also tasked with assessing the 
existing WWTF’s ability to receive and process additional flows.  To complete that process, they performed 
and in depth analysis of the WWTF’s condition, performance and capacity, as well as assessed if connecting 
additional flow to the system would violate the provisions in the Permit that prevent additional flows being 
discharged to the ocean outfall for the system, which is regulated as part of the Oceans Sanctuary Act.  
 
As shown in the various sections of the CWMP included herein below from Section V of the report, the 
existing WWTF has a permitted capacity of 670,000 gallons per day and lows and highs of their rolling 
average of flow between 460,000 and 550,000 gallons per day respectively.  Given this, CDR Maguire 
estimated that the existing WWTF has approximately  between 96,000 gallons per day on the low side and 
200,000 gallons per day on the high side (see below) of existing excess capacity (prior to any additional I/I 
removal efforts).  This information was based on their analysis presented herein for both flows and the 
condition of the system relative to permit compliance.   
 

 
 
 



 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 
 

Based upon the information reviewed and presented herein, it appears that, as part of the Comprehensive 
Wastewater Management Planning, which resulted in the 2016 CWMP report, the Town of Manchester-by-
the-Sea identified School Street north of Route 128, as a specific study area that should have existing 
capacity within the sewer and WWTF system reserved, which is greater than the anticipated maximum day 
flow from the proposed project.  Furthermore, prior to any I/I removal efforts that have been undertaken by 
the Town since the CWMP was issued, the Town had a minimum excess WWTF capacity at the existing 
facility of almost 100,000 gallons per day, which could accommodate the flows and loadings from the 
proposed SLV development on School Street. 
 
Lastly, it should be noted that, as part of the design and approval of a connection between the proposed 
project and the existing sewer system, a capacity analysis that would identify any specific sewer pipes that 
might require capacity upgrades in order to accommodate the additional flow from the proposed sewage lift 
station at the project site would typically be commissioned and performed by or for the Town.   
 
We are hopeful that this memorandum summarizing the Town’s wastewater planning efforts and CWMP 
report provides the ZBA with additional context and information as to the capacity of the municipal system 
and the ability of the Town’s WWTF to accept and treat additional sewage flow generated from the proposed 
40B development 
 

 


